

Memorandum 2017-11

2017 Legislative Program (Status Report)

The attached table summarizes the current status of the Commission's¹ 2017 legislative program. Bills have been introduced to implement three of the four Commission recommendations that were ready for introduction in 2017, as follows:

- Assembly Bill 534 (Gallagher) implements the Commission's recommendation on *Mechanics Liens in Common Interest Developments* (December 2016).
- Assembly Bill 905 (Maienschein) implements the Commission's recommendation on *Recognition of Tribal and Foreign Court Money Judgments* (September 2016).
- Assembly Bill 1034 (Chau) implements the Commission's recommendation on *Government Interruption of Communication Service* (December 2016).

Two of those bills are discussed further in this memorandum, below.

Legislation implementing the Commission's recommendation on *Deadly Weapons: Minor Clean-Up Issues (Part 2)* (December 2015) will not be introduced in 2017.

AB 534 (GALLAGHER) — MECHANICS LIENS IN COMMON INTEREST DEVELOPMENTS

Among other things, AB 534 would provide that a common interest development's association is the owners' agent for receipt of mechanics lien notices for work on the common area. If the association is served with a claim of lien, the association would be required to notify the owners.

The author was contacted about making two different sets of technical clarifying amendments to the bill. The purpose of the proposed amendments is

¹. Any California Law Revision Commission document referred to in this memorandum can be obtained from the Commission. Recent materials can be downloaded from the Commission's website (www.clrc.ca.gov). Other materials can be obtained by contacting the Commission's staff, through the website or otherwise.

The Commission welcomes written comments at any time during its study process. Any comments received will be a part of the public record and may be considered at a public meeting. However, comments that are received less than five business days prior to a Commission meeting may be presented without staff analysis.

to emphasize that the rules described above only apply to mechanics lien notices for work on the common area.

The first set of amendments would revise proposed Civil Code Sections 4620 and 6660 as follows:

4620. If the association is served with a claim of lien pursuant to Part 6 (commencing with Section 8000), for a work of improvement on common area, the association shall, within 60 days of service, give individual notice to the members, pursuant to Section 4040.

6660. If the association is served with a claim of lien pursuant to Part 6 (commencing with Section 8000), for a work of improvement on common area, the association shall, within 60 days of service, give individual notice to the members, pursuant to Section 6514.

The author agreed to make those changes and the bill was amended when it was heard by the Assembly Committee on Housing and Community Development.

The second suggested amendment was raised too close to the hearing date to be addressed at the hearing. It would revise proposed Civil Code Section 8119 as follows:

8119. (a) With respect to a work of improvement on common area within a common interest development, ~~the~~ :

(1) The association is deemed to be an agent of the owners of separate interests in the common interest development, for all notices and claims required by this part.

(2) If any provision of this part requires the delivery or service of a notice or claim to or on the owner of common area property, the notice or claim may be delivered to or served on the association.

(b) For the purposes of this section, the terms "association," "common area," "common interest development," and "separate interest" have the meanings provided in Article 2 (commencing with Section 4075) of Chapter 1 of Part 5 and Article 2 (commencing with Section 6526) of Chapter 1 of Part 5.3.

The author has not yet decided whether to make that amendment.

Commission Process

The Commission expressly recognizes that the author of a Commission-recommended bill has unlimited authority to decide whether to amend the bill. However, if time permits, a proposed amendment should be provided to the Commission for review.²

2. CLRC Handbook of Practices and Procedures 3.3.

Unfortunately, that is usually not possible, because most amendments need to be made in accord with the Legislature’s schedule, which rarely matches up with the Commission’s meeting schedule. If that is the case, the staff will consult informally with the Chairperson before the amendment is made, to discuss whether the proposed amendment would cause any concerns that need to be communicated to the author. Once the amendment is made, it will be presented to the full Commission at the next meeting. The Commission will then decide whether the amendment is compatible with the Commission’s recommendation.

In this case, it was not possible to present the first amendments to the full Commission before they were made. Instead, the staff consulted informally with Chairperson Lee, with the understanding that the amendment would be presented to the full Commission at the April meeting. She had no concerns.

The Commission now needs to decide whether to accept the amendments as compatible with the Commission’s recommendation. **The staff recommends that the Commission do so.** The amendments seem wholly consistent with the Commission’s intention that the notice provisions be limited to work on common area property. The staff sees no harm in emphasizing that point.

If the Commission accepts the amendments, it could revise its recommendation to use the amended language. This is possible because the recommendation is still in “pre-print” form, not yet having been printed in a hardbound volume.

The amendments would not require any changes to the Commission’s Comments.

Does the Commission accept the amendments as consistent with its recommendation? If so, does it wish to revise its recommendation accordingly? With respect to the second proposed amendment, the staff will communicate the Commission’s decision to Assembly Member Gallagher.

AB 905 (MAIENSCHIN) — RECOGNITION OF TRIBAL AND
FOREIGN COURT MONEY JUDGMENTS

Background

Prior to AB 905 being heard by the Assembly Committee on Judiciary, the committee expressed concern about the existing language that introduces the discretionary grounds for nonrecognition of a tribal or foreign court money judgment. That language provides (with emphasis added):

A court of this state *is not required* to recognize a ... judgment if any of the following apply:

...

On its face, that language seems to grant a court unbridled discretion to decide whether or not to recognize a judgment that satisfies one of the specified grounds.

The committee has expressed concern about that language before, in its analysis of the bill that assigned this study to the Commission (AB 406 (Evans) (2014)). In essence, the committee questioned whether it would ever be good policy to recognize a tribal or foreign court judgment if due process was violated in the underlying proceeding. In other words, why should a court have discretion to recognize a judgment when the underlying proceeding was fundamentally unfair?³ Although that concern was raised about the due process ground for nonrecognition, the same concern could be expressed about the other fairness-based discretionary grounds.⁴

The Commission analyzed that issue and concluded that some degree of judicial discretion is warranted, even when the ground for nonrecognition is as serious as a violation of due process. Such discretion allows a court to reach the right result in the unusual case where there is a good reason for recognition that outweighs the seriousness of the ground for nonrecognition.

Based on that analysis, the Commission decided against making any change to the introduction to the discretionary grounds, instead adding Comment language to explain how those grounds are understood to operate in practice:

Subdivision (c) lists grounds on which the court may decline to recognize a foreign-country judgment. With the exception of paragraphs (c)(3) and (c)(4), these grounds generally involve the fairness of the foreign proceeding. When the fairness-related grounds apply, the court has discretion to recognize the foreign-country judgment in the unusual case where countervailing considerations outweigh the seriousness of the defect underlying the applicable ground for nonrecognition. Such countervailing considerations could include, for instance, situations in which the opponent failed to raise an objection in the foreign court or the opponent's own misconduct was the primary cause of the harm suffered.⁵

3. See generally Memorandum 2015-38, p. 6, discussing Assembly Committee on Judiciary Analysis of SB 406 (June 13, 2014), p. 7.

4. See, e.g., Code Civ. Proc. § 1716(c)(2) ("The judgment was obtained by fraud that deprived the losing party of an adequate opportunity to present its case.").

5. Code Civ. Proc. § 1716 Comment.

That guidance was not sufficient to address the committee’s concern about the statutory language. The committee informally requested that the bill be amended to clarify how the fairness-based discretionary grounds should be applied. Mr. Maienschein agreed to amend AB 905 to make the requested clarification. With that amendment, the bill was approved, on consent, by the Assembly Committee on Judiciary.

A copy of the amended bill is attached for reference.

Amendment

The main thrust of the amendment was to revise the discretionary grounds for nonrecognition, as follows:

(1) A court of this state ~~is not required to~~ shall not recognize a foreign-country judgment if any of the following apply:

[discretionary grounds for nonrecognition]

(2) Notwithstanding an applicable ground for nonrecognition under paragraph (1), the court may nonetheless recognize a foreign-country judgment if the party seeking recognition of the judgment demonstrates good reason to recognize the judgment that outweighs the ground for nonrecognition.

As can be seen, the revised language does not prevent a court from recognizing a judgment if it finds good reason to do so, sufficient to outweigh the ground for nonrecognition.

As a matter of substance, the revised language seems compatible with the Commission’s Comment explaining how the discretionary grounds are understood to operate in practice: “When the fairness-related grounds apply, the court has discretion to recognize the foreign-country judgment in the unusual case where countervailing considerations outweigh the seriousness of the defect underlying the applicable ground for nonrecognition.”⁶ The amendment would codify that understanding.

However, the amendment is inconsistent with the Commission’s general preference that the statute’s language be consistent with the language of the Uniform Act.

6. *Id.*

Conforming Amendments

While the main thrust of the amendment is described above, the bill was also amended to make a handful of conforming changes. The most important of those was the relocation of one of the discretionary grounds, so that it would not be subject to the new language. Instead, the relocated ground would continue to be entirely discretionary, thus:

(d) A court of this state is not required to recognize a foreign-country judgment if the judgment conflicts with another final and conclusive judgment.

It is proper for that provision to be entirely discretionary, because that allows the court to determine, based on general comity principles extrinsic to the statute, which of the conflicting judgments is entitled to recognition. It would be inappropriate to subject that rule to a presumption that the judgment before the court should not be recognized.

With the relocation of that provision from subdivision (c) to a new subdivision (d), certain cross-references also needed to be adjusted.

Commission Process

As discussed above, in connection with AB 534, the ideal practice would have been to present the amendments to the Commission for review before they were made. The Commission could then have communicated any concerns (or a lack of concern) to Assembly Member Maienschein before he decided whether to amend the bill.

The Legislature's schedule did not permit that. Instead, the staff consulted informally with Chairperson Lee before the bill was amended, to learn if she had any concerns that should be shared with the author. She did not.

The Commission now needs to decide whether to accept the amendment as compatible with the Commission's recommendation. The staff believes that the amendment is compatible with the *substance* of the recommendation, but is inconsistent with the Commission's *formal* preference that the language of the proposed law match that of the Uniform Act.

The Commission has a range of options:

- (1) It could wholly embrace the amendment, conforming its own recommendation to use the amended language. This is possible because the recommendation is still in "pre-print" form, not yet having been printed in a hardbound volume.

- (2) It could accept the amendment as compatible with its recommendation, without conforming its recommendation to the amended language.
- (3) It could disclaim the amendment. As AB 905 proceeds through the remainder of the legislative process, the staff would make clear that the Commission takes no position on the amendment, because it is not based on the Commission's recommendation.

Regardless of which course the Commission chooses to take, the Commission should also consider whether to revise its Comments to be compatible with the amended bill. That would not necessarily signal acceptance of the amendment. The purpose would be to avoid confusion in the historical record that would result from inconsistency between the Comments and the law as enacted.

Because the Commission's recommendation is still in pre-print form, it is possible to make any conforming changes — whether to the preliminary part, proposed legislation, or Comments — in the recommendation itself. That would be the cleanest way to express those changes.

If the Commission decides to make any conforming changes to its recommendation, the staff will prepare a revised draft for the Commission's review at the June meeting.

How would the Commission like to proceed?

Respectfully submitted,

Brian Hebert
Executive Director

Status of 2017 Commission Legislative Program

As of April 6, 2017

		AB 534	AB 905	AB 1034							
	Introduced Last Amended	2/13/17	2/16/17	2/16/17							
		4/5/17	3/13/17	—							
First House	Policy Committee	4/5/17	3/21/17	4/5/17							
	Second Committee Passed House	4/18/17	4/5/17								
Second House	Policy Committee										
	Second Committee										
	Passed House										
Concurrence											
Governor	Received Approved										
Secretary of State	Date Chapter #										

Bill List: AB 534 (Gallagher): Mechanics Lien in Common Interest Development
 AB 905 (Maienschein): Recognition of Tribal and Foreign Court Money Judgments
 AB 1034 (Chau): Government Interruption of Communication

KEY _____

Italics: Future or speculative

“—”: Not applicable

*: Double referral, not fiscal

[date]: Deadline

AMENDED IN ASSEMBLY MARCH 13, 2017

CALIFORNIA LEGISLATURE—2017—18 REGULAR SESSION

ASSEMBLY BILL

No. 905

Introduced by Assembly Member Maienschein

February 16, 2017

An act to amend Sections 1714, 1716, 1717, 1730, 1731, 1732, 1733, 1737, and 1741 of, to amend the heading of Title 11 (commencing with Section 1710.10) of Part 3 of, to amend the heading of Chapter 1 (commencing with Section 1710.10) of Title 11 of Part 3 of, to add Section 1725 to, to add the heading of Chapter 3 (commencing with Section 1730) of Title 11 of Part 3 to, and to repeal Sections 1714 and 1742 of, and to repeal the heading of Title 11.5 (commencing with Section 1730) of Part 3 of, the Code of Civil Procedure, relating to civil procedure.

LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL'S DIGEST

AB 905, as amended, Maienschein. Money judgments of other jurisdictions.

Existing law establishes procedures for California courts to recognize money judgments of courts from other states, foreign countries, and tribal courts.

This bill would revise and recast these provisions.

Existing law, the Uniform Foreign-Country Money Judgments Recognition Act, requires a California court to recognize a foreign-country judgment unless a specified exception applies, including instances in which the foreign court lacks personal jurisdiction over the defendant.

This bill would specify that a foreign court lacks personal jurisdiction over a defendant if the court lacks personal jurisdiction under its own laws or California’s laws.

Existing law, the Tribal Court Civil Money Judgment Act, provides for the enforceability of tribal court money judgments in California, except as specified. That act, among other things, prescribes the procedure for applying for recognition and entry of a judgment based on a tribal court money judgment, and requires this application to be executed under penalty of perjury. The act provides that it will remain in effect until January 1, 2018. After that date, tribal court money judgments will be governed by the above-described Uniform Foreign-Country Money Judgments Recognition Act.

This bill would eliminate the Tribal Court Civil Money Judgment Act’s sunset date. By extending the provisions of the act, this bill would expand the scope of the crime of perjury and thus impose a state-mandated local program.

The California Constitution requires the state to reimburse local agencies and school districts for certain costs mandated by the state. Statutory provisions establish procedures for making that reimbursement.

This bill would provide that no reimbursement is required by this act for a specified reason.

Vote: majority. Appropriation: no. Fiscal committee: yes. State-mandated local program: yes.

The people of the State of California do enact as follows:

1 SECTION 1. The heading of Title 11 (commencing with
2 Section 1710.10) of Part 3 of the Code of Civil Procedure is
3 amended to read:

4
5 TITLE 11. MONEY JUDGMENTS OF OTHER
6 JURISDICTIONS
7

8 SEC. 2. The heading of Chapter 1 (commencing with Section
9 1710.10) of Title 11 of Part 3 of the Code of Civil Procedure is
10 amended to read:

11
12 CHAPTER 1. SISTER STATE MONEY JUDGMENTS
13

1 SEC. 3. Section 1714 of the Code of Civil Procedure, as
2 amended by Section 2 of Chapter 243 of the Statutes of 2014, is
3 amended to read:

4 1714. As used in this chapter:

5 (a) “Foreign country” means a government other than any of
6 the following:

7 (1) The United States.

8 (2) A state, district, commonwealth, territory, or insular
9 possession of the United States.

10 (3) A federally recognized Indian nation, tribe, pueblo, band,
11 or Alaska Native village.

12 (4) Any other government with regard to which the decision in
13 this state as to whether to recognize a judgment of that
14 government’s courts is initially subject to determination under the
15 Full Faith and Credit Clause of the United States Constitution.

16 (b) “Foreign-country judgment” means a judgment of a court
17 of a foreign country.

18 SEC. 4. Section 1714 of the Code of Civil Procedure, as added
19 by Section 3 of Chapter 243 of the Statutes of 2014, is repealed.

20 SEC. 5. Section 1716 of the Code of Civil Procedure is
21 amended to read:

22 1716. (a) Except as otherwise provided in subdivisions (b),
23 (c), (d), and ~~(e)~~ (f), a court of this state shall recognize a
24 foreign-country judgment to which this chapter applies.

25 (b) A court of this state shall not recognize a foreign-country
26 judgment if any of the following apply:

27 (1) The judgment was rendered under a judicial system that
28 does not provide impartial tribunals or procedures compatible with
29 the requirements of due process of law.

30 (2) The foreign court did not have personal jurisdiction over
31 the defendant.

32 (3) The foreign court did not have jurisdiction over the subject
33 matter.

34 (c) (1) A court of this state ~~is not required to~~ shall not recognize
35 a foreign-country judgment if any of the following apply:

36 ~~(1)~~

37 (A) The defendant in the proceeding in the foreign court did not
38 receive notice of the proceeding in sufficient time to enable the
39 defendant to defend.

40 ~~(2)~~

1 (B) The judgment was obtained by fraud that deprived the losing
2 party of an adequate opportunity to present its case.

3 ~~(3)~~

4 (C) The judgment or the cause of action or claim for relief on
5 which the judgment is based is repugnant to the public policy of
6 this state or of the United States.

7 ~~(4) The judgment conflicts with another final and conclusive
8 judgment.~~

9 ~~(5)~~

10 (D) The proceeding in the foreign court was contrary to an
11 agreement between the parties under which the dispute in question
12 was to be determined otherwise than by proceedings in that foreign
13 court.

14 ~~(6)~~

15 (E) In the case of jurisdiction based only on personal service,
16 the foreign court was a seriously inconvenient forum for the trial
17 of the action.

18 ~~(7)~~

19 (F) The judgment was rendered in circumstances that raise
20 substantial doubt about the integrity of the rendering court with
21 respect to the judgment.

22 ~~(8)~~

23 (G) The specific proceeding in the foreign court leading to the
24 judgment was not compatible with the requirements of due process
25 of law.

26 *(2) Notwithstanding an applicable ground for nonrecognition
27 under paragraph (1), the court may nonetheless recognize a
28 foreign-country judgment if the party seeking recognition of the
29 judgment demonstrates good reason to recognize the judgment
30 that outweighs the ground for nonrecognition.*

31 *(d) A court of this state is not required to recognize a
32 foreign-country judgment if the judgment conflicts with another
33 final and conclusive judgment.*

34 ~~(d)~~

35 (e) If the party seeking recognition of a foreign-country
36 judgment has met its burden of establishing recognition of the
37 foreign-country judgment pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section
38 1715, a party resisting recognition of a foreign-country judgment
39 has the burden of establishing that a ground for nonrecognition
40 stated in subdivision ~~(b)~~ or (e) (b), (c), or (d) exists.

1 ~~(e)~~

2 (f) A court of this state shall not recognize a foreign-country
3 judgment for defamation if that judgment is not recognizable under
4 Section 4102 of Title 28 of the United States Code.

5 SEC. 6. Section 1717 of the Code of Civil Procedure is
6 amended to read:

7 1717. (a) For the purpose of paragraph (2) of subdivision (b)
8 of Section 1716, a foreign court lacks personal jurisdiction over a
9 defendant if either of the following conditions is met:

10 (1) The foreign court lacks a basis for exercising personal
11 jurisdiction that would be sufficient according to the standards
12 governing personal jurisdiction in this state.

13 (2) The foreign court lacks personal jurisdiction under its own
14 law.

15 (b) A foreign-country judgment shall not be refused recognition
16 for lack of personal jurisdiction under paragraph (1) of subdivision
17 (a) if any of the following apply:

18 (1) The defendant was served with process personally in the
19 foreign country.

20 (2) The defendant voluntarily appeared in the proceeding, other
21 than for the purpose of protecting property seized or threatened
22 with seizure in the proceeding or of contesting the jurisdiction of
23 the court over the defendant.

24 (3) The defendant, before the commencement of the proceeding,
25 had agreed to submit to the jurisdiction of the foreign court with
26 respect to the subject matter involved.

27 (4) The defendant was domiciled in the foreign country when
28 the proceeding was instituted or was a corporation or other form
29 of business organization that had its principal place of business
30 in, or was organized under the laws of, the foreign country.

31 (5) The defendant had a business office in the foreign country
32 and the proceeding in the foreign court involved a cause of action
33 or claim for relief arising out of business done by the defendant
34 through that office in the foreign country.

35 (6) The defendant operated a motor vehicle or airplane in the
36 foreign country and the proceeding involved a cause of action or
37 claim for relief arising out of that operation.

38 (c) The list of bases for personal jurisdiction in subdivision (b)
39 is not exclusive. The courts of this state may recognize bases of

1 personal jurisdiction other than those listed in subdivision (b) as
2 sufficient for the purposes of paragraph (1) of subdivision (a).

3 SEC. 7. Section 1725 is added to the Code of Civil Procedure,
4 to read:

5 1725. (a) If all of the following conditions are satisfied, a
6 person against whom a foreign-country defamation judgment was
7 rendered may seek declaratory relief with respect to liability for
8 the judgment or a determination that the judgment is not
9 recognizable under section 1716:

10 (1) The person is a resident or other person or entity amendable
11 to jurisdiction in this state.

12 (2) The person either has assets in this state that may be subject
13 to an enforcement proceeding to satisfy the foreign-country
14 defamation judgment or may have to take actions in this state to
15 comply with the foreign-country defamation judgment.

16 (3) The publication at issue was published in this state.

17 (b) A court of this state has jurisdiction to determine a
18 declaratory relief action or issue a determination pursuant to this
19 section and has personal jurisdiction over the person or entity who
20 obtained the foreign-country defamation judgment regardless of
21 ~~when it was rendered.~~ *judgment.*

22 (c) This section shall apply to a foreign-country defamation
23 judgment regardless of when it was rendered.

24 SEC. 8. The heading of Title 11.5 (commencing with Section
25 1730) of Part 3 of the Code of Civil Procedure is repealed.

26 SEC. 9. The heading of Chapter 3 (commencing with Section
27 1730) is added to Title 11 of Part 3 of the Code of Civil Procedure,
28 to read:

29
30 CHAPTER 3. TRIBAL COURT CIVIL MONEY JUDGMENT ACT
31

32 SEC. 10. Section 1730 of the Code of Civil Procedure is
33 amended to read:

34 1730. This chapter shall be known and may be cited as the
35 Tribal Court Civil Money Judgment Act.

36 SEC. 11. Section 1731 of the Code of Civil Procedure is
37 amended to read:

38 1731. (a) This chapter governs the procedures by which the
39 superior courts of the State of California recognize and enter tribal
40 court money judgments of any federally recognized Indian tribe.

1 Determinations regarding recognition and entry of a tribal court
2 money judgment pursuant to state law shall have no effect upon
3 the independent authority of that judgment. To the extent not
4 inconsistent with this chapter, the Code of Civil Procedure shall
5 apply.

6 (b) This chapter does not apply to any of the following tribal
7 court money judgments:

8 (1) For taxes, fines, or other penalties.

9 (2) For which federal law requires that states grant full faith and
10 credit recognition, including child support orders under the Full
11 Faith and Credit for Child Support Orders Act (28 U.S.C. Sec.
12 1738B).

13 (3) For which state law provides for recognition, including child
14 support orders recognized under the Uniform Child Custody
15 Jurisdiction and Enforcement Act (Part 3 (commencing with
16 Section 3400) of Division 8 of the Family Code), other forms of
17 family support orders under the Uniform Interstate Family Support
18 Act (Part 6 (commencing with Section 5700.101) of Division 9 of
19 the Family Code).

20 (4) For decedents' estates, guardianships, conservatorships,
21 internal affairs of trusts, powers of attorney, or other tribal court
22 money judgments that arise in proceedings that are or would be
23 governed by the Probate Code.

24 (c) Nothing in this chapter shall be deemed or construed to
25 expand or limit the jurisdiction of either the state or any Indian
26 tribe.

27 SEC. 12. Section 1732 of the Code of Civil Procedure is
28 amended to read:

29 1732. For purposes of this chapter:

30 (a) "Applicant" means the person or persons who can bring an
31 action to enforce a tribal court money judgment.

32 (b) "Civil action or proceeding" means any action or proceeding
33 that is not criminal, except for those actions or proceedings
34 expressly excluded by subdivision (b) of Section 1731.

35 (c) "Due process" includes, but is not limited to, the right to be
36 represented by legal counsel, to receive reasonable notice and an
37 opportunity for a hearing, to call and cross-examine witnesses,
38 and to present evidence and argument to an impartial
39 decisionmaker.

1 (d) “Good cause” means a substantial reason, taking into account
2 the prejudice or irreparable harm a party will suffer if a hearing is
3 not held on an objection or not held within the time periods
4 established by this chapter.

5 (e) “Respondent” means the person or persons against whom
6 an action to enforce a tribal court money judgment can be brought.

7 (f) “Tribal court” means any court or other tribunal of any
8 federally recognized Indian nation, tribe, pueblo, band, or Alaska
9 Native village, duly established under tribal or federal law,
10 including Courts of Indian Offenses organized pursuant to Part 11
11 of Title 25 of the Code of Federal Regulations.

12 (g) “Tribal court money judgment” means any written judgment,
13 decree, or order of a tribal court for a specified amount of money
14 that was issued in a civil action or proceeding that is final,
15 conclusive, and enforceable by the tribal court in which it was
16 issued and is duly authenticated in accordance with the laws and
17 procedures of the tribe or tribal court.

18 SEC. 13. Section 1733 of the Code of Civil Procedure is
19 amended to read:

20 1733. (a) An application for entry of a judgment under this
21 chapter shall be filed in a superior court.

22 (b) Subject to the power of the court to transfer proceedings
23 under this chapter pursuant to Title 4 (commencing with Section
24 392) of Part 2, the proper county for the filing of an application is
25 either of the following:

26 (1) The county in which any respondent resides or owns
27 property.

28 (2) If no respondent is a resident, any county in this state.

29 (c) A case in which the tribal court money judgment amounts
30 to twenty-five thousand dollars (\$25,000) or less is a limited civil
31 case.

32 SEC. 14. Section 1737 of the Code of Civil Procedure is
33 amended to read:

34 1737. (a) Any objection to the recognition and entry of the
35 tribal court money judgment shall be served and filed within 30
36 days of service of the notice of filing. If any objection is filed
37 within this time period, the superior court shall set a time period
38 for replies and set the matter for a hearing. The hearing shall be
39 held by the superior court within 45 days from the date the
40 objection is filed unless good cause exists for a later hearing. The

1 only grounds for objecting to the recognition or enforcement of a
2 tribal court money judgment are the grounds set forth in
3 subdivisions ~~(b)~~ (b), (c), and ~~(e)~~: (d).

4 (b) A tribal court money judgment shall not be recognized and
5 entered if the respondent demonstrates to the superior court that
6 at least one of the following occurred:

7 (1) The tribal court did not have personal jurisdiction over the
8 respondent.

9 (2) The tribal court did not have jurisdiction over the subject
10 matter.

11 (3) The judgment was rendered under a judicial system that
12 does not provide impartial tribunals or procedures compatible with
13 the requirements of due process of law.

14 (c) (1) The superior court ~~may, in its discretion,~~ shall decline
15 to recognize and enter a tribal court money judgment ~~on~~ if any one
16 of the following ~~grounds:~~ grounds applies:

17 ~~(1)~~

18 (A) The defendant in the proceeding in the tribal court did not
19 receive notice of the proceeding in sufficient time to enable the
20 defendant to defend.

21 ~~(2)~~

22 (B) The judgment was obtained by fraud that deprived the losing
23 party of an adequate opportunity to present its case.

24 ~~(3)~~

25 (C) The judgment or the cause of action or claim for relief on
26 which the judgment is based is repugnant to the public policy of
27 the state or of the United States.

28 ~~(4) The judgment conflicts with another final and conclusive~~
29 ~~judgment.~~

30 ~~(5)~~

31 (D) The proceeding in the tribal court was contrary to an
32 agreement between the parties under which the dispute in question
33 was to be determined otherwise than by proceedings in that tribal
34 court.

35 ~~(6)~~

36 (E) In the case of jurisdiction based on personal service only,
37 the tribal court was a seriously inconvenient forum for the trial of
38 the action.

39 ~~(7)~~

1 (F) The judgment was rendered under circumstances that raise
2 substantial doubt about the integrity of the rendering court with
3 respect to the judgment.

4 ~~(8)~~

5 (G) The specific proceeding in the tribal court leading to the
6 judgment was not compatible with the requirements of due process
7 of law.

8 ~~(9)~~

9 (H) The judgment includes recovery for a claim of defamation,
10 unless the court determines that the defamation law applied by the
11 tribal court provided at least as much protection for freedom of
12 speech and the press as provided by both the United States and
13 California Constitutions.

14 (2) *Notwithstanding an applicable ground for nonrecognition*
15 *under paragraph (1), the court may nonetheless recognize a tribal*
16 *court money judgment if the applicant demonstrates good reason*
17 *to recognize the judgment that outweighs the ground for*
18 *nonrecognition.*

19 (d) *The superior court may, in its discretion, decline to recognize*
20 *and enter a tribal court money judgment if the judgment conflicts*
21 *with another final and conclusive judgment.*

22 ~~(e)~~

23 (e) If objections have been timely filed, the applicant has the
24 burden of establishing that the tribal court money judgment is
25 entitled to recognition. If the applicant has met its burden, a party
26 resisting recognition of the tribal court money judgment has the
27 burden of establishing that a ground for nonrecognition exists
28 pursuant to subdivision-~~(b)~~ (b), (c), or-~~(e)~~: (d).

29 ~~SEC. 14.~~

30 SEC. 15. Section 1741 of the Code of Civil Procedure is
31 amended to read:

32 1741. (a) The Uniform Foreign-Country Money Judgments
33 Recognition Act (Chapter 2 (commencing with Section 1713))
34 applies to all actions commenced in superior court before January
35 1, 2015, in which the issue of recognition of a tribal court money
36 judgment is raised.

37 (b) This chapter applies to all actions to enforce tribal court
38 money judgments as defined herein commenced in superior court
39 on or after January 1, 2015. A judgment entered under this chapter
40 shall not limit the right of a party to seek enforcement of any part

1 of a judgment, order, or decree entered by a tribal court that is not
2 encompassed by the judgment entered under this chapter.

3 ~~SEC. 15.~~

4 *SEC. 16.* Section 1742 of the Code of Civil Procedure is
5 repealed.

6 ~~SEC. 16.~~

7 *SEC. 17.* No reimbursement is required by this act pursuant to
8 Section 6 of Article XIII B of the California Constitution because
9 the only costs that may be incurred by a local agency or school
10 district will be incurred because this act creates a new crime or
11 infraction, eliminates a crime or infraction, or changes the penalty
12 for a crime or infraction, within the meaning of Section 17556 of
13 the Government Code, or changes the definition of a crime within
14 the meaning of Section 6 of Article XIII B of the California
15 Constitution.